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UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549
FORM 10-Q
X] QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR tH(OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For the Fiscal Quarter Ended November 24, 2013or
[ 1] TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 dR(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the Transition period from to

Commission file numbef-27446

LANDEC CORPORATION
(Exact name of registrant as specified in its @rart

Delaware 94-3025618
(State or other jurisdiction « (IRS Employer
incorporation or organizatiot Identification Number)

3603 Haven Avenue
Menlo Park, California 94025
(Address of principal executive offices)

Registrant's telephone number, including area code:
(650) 306-1650

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant &b tiled all reports required to be filed by Secti or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange
of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for sstobrter period that the registrant was requirefilésuch reports), and (2) has been su
to such filing requirements for at least the p&sdays.

Yes_X No__

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant ldsstted electronically and posted on its corpok&bsite, if any, every Interactive Data
File required to be submitted and posted pursuaRide 405 of Regulation $-during the preceding 12 months (or for such srgreriod the
the registrant was required to submit and post §iles).

Yes _X No
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a-accelerated filer or a smaller report
company. See definition of “large accelerated fikend “accelerated filer” and “smaller reportingngpany” in Rule 122 of the Exchanc

Act.
Large Accelerated Filer __ Accelerated Filer _X_
Non Accelerated Filer ___ Smaller Reporting Company _

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantsbell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exge Act).
Yes No_ X

As of December 23, 2013, there were 26,661,343sharCommon Stock outstanding.
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PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION
Item 1. Financial Statements
LANDEC CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(In thousands, except share and per share amounts)

November 24, May 26,
2013 2013
(Unaudited) 1)
ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 5,76¢ $ 13,71¢
Marketable securities — 1,54¢
Accounts receivable, less allowance for doubtfalbants of $430 and $583 at November 24, 201
and May 26, 2013, respectively 41,74t 36,07
Accounts receivable, related party 131 671
Income taxes receivable 5,01¢ 5,10¢
Inventories, net 26,86" 24,11
Deferred taxes 1,80( 1,582
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 4,217 2,85¢
Total Current Assets 85,54( 85,66(
Investment in non-public company, non-fair value 79:< 793
Investment in non-public company, fair value 37,30( 29,60(
Property and equipment, net 70,02« 65,81’
Goodwill, net 49,62( 49,62(
Trademarks/tradenames, net 48,42¢ 48,42¢
Customer relationships, net 9,167 9,60¢
Other assets 1,38¢ 1,424
Total Assets $ 302,25t $ 290,94:
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 3451¢ $ 31,47(
Related party accounts payable 242 78€
Accrued compensation 3,31t 4,98¢
Other accrued liabilities 4,50¢ 2,33:
Deferred revenue 1,282 1,24¢
Lines of credit 1,00( 4,00(
Current portion of long-term debt 5,98¢ 5,93t
Total Current Liabilities 50,85¢ 50,75:
Long-term debt, less current portion 31,18¢ 34,37:
Deferred taxes 28,32 24,05¢
Other non-current liabilities 1,62¢ 1,34¢
Total Liabilities 111,99( 110,52¢
Total Stockholders’ Equity:
Common stock, $0.001 par value; 50,000,000 shartt®azed; 26,650,586 and 26,402,247 share
issued and outstanding at November 24, 2013 and28a2013, respectively 27 26
Additional paid-in capital 128,03: 126,25¢
Retained earnings 60,61: 52,40¢
Total Stockholders’ Equity 188,67( 178,69:
Non controlling interest 1,59¢ 1,721
Total Equity 190,26t 180,41
Total Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity $ 302,25t $ 290,94:

(1) Derived from audited financial statements.
See accompanying notes.
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LANDEC CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Revenues:
Product sales
Services revenue, related party
Total revenues
Cost of revenue:
Cost of product sales
Cost of services revenue
Total cost of revenue
Gross profit
Operating costs and expenses:
Research and development
Selling, general and administrative
Change in value of contingent consideration
Total operating costs and expenses
Operating income
Dividend income
Interest income
Interest expense
Other income
Net income before taxe
Income tax expense
Consolidated net income
Non controlling interes

Net income and comprehensive income applicableencon stockholder $

Basic net income per share
Diluted net income per share
Shares used in per share computation

Basic
Diluted

(Unaudited)
(In thousands, except per share amounts)

Three Months Ended

Six Months Ended

November 24

November 25

November 24

November 25

2013 2012 2013 2012

$ 11955 $  11409: $  22848( $ 21539
47E 562 1,02¢ 1,33¢

120,02 114,65 229,50 216,72
105,89 95,70; 202,32( 183,37

40z 48¢ 91¢ 1,13¢

106,29: 96,19 203,23 184,50
13,73¢ 18,45¢ 26,26¢ 32,22

1,91¢ 2,11¢ 3,84¢ 4,317

8,63¢ 9,18¢ 17,26¢ 17,74:

— (3,939 — (3,939

10,55¢ 7,36¢ 21,11 18,12¢

3,17¢ 11,09: 5,15z 14,09¢

281 281 562 562

46 33 10E 58

(436) (49¢) (867) (1,039

2,30( 082 7,70 5,241

5,367 11,89: 12,65: 18,91¢

(1,879 (2,920 (4,349 (5,48¢)

3,49: 8,97: 8,30¢ 13,43

(42) (59 (101) (156)

3451 $ 891: $ 8,20 $ 13,27¢

$ 0.1 $ 035 $ 031 $ 0.52
$ 0.1: $ 03¢ $ 0.3 $ 0.5(
26,57 25,74 26,51 25,70¢

27,07 26,53 27,08 26,38

See accompanying notes.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Cash flows from operating activities:
Consolidated net income

LANDEC CORPORATION

(Unaudited)
(In thousands)

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net caskigeal by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization
Stock-based compensation expense

Tax benefit from stock-based compensation expense

Loss on disposal of property and equipment
Deferred taxes
Earn out liability

Change in investment in non-public company (fairkeawvalue)

Changes in current assets and current liabilities:
Accounts receivable, net
Accounts receivable, related party
Income taxes receivable
Inventories, net
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Accounts payable
Related party accounts payable
Accrued compensation
Other accrued liabilities
Deferred revenue
Net cash provided by operating activit
Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchases of property and equipment
Purchase of marketable securities
Proceeds from maturities of marketable securities
Net cash used in investing activiti
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from sale of common stock
Taxes paid by Company for stock swaps and RSUs
Tax benefit from stock-based compensation expense
Earn out payment from Lifecore acquisition
Payments on long-term debt
Payments on lines of credit
Decrease in other assets
Payments to minority interest holders
Net cash used in financing activiti
Net decrease in cash and cash equiva
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period
Supplemental schedule of noncash operating aetviti
Change in value of contingent consideration

See accompanying notes
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Six Months Ended

November 24,

November 25,

2013 2012
830/ $ 13,43
3,781 3,661

63¢ 671
(175) (1,819
124 18¢
4,05( 3,03¢
— (3,939
(7,700 (5,257)
(5,679) (8,644)
54C 10
262 1,84(
(2,759 (2,39])
(1,361) (436)
3,04¢ 3,30(
(544) (351)
(749) (1,229)
2,45; (61€)
34 90¢
4,297 2,38¢
(7,681) (3,280)
(1,417) (2,459
2,96: 50C
(6,136 (5,239
1,25: 651
(1,219 (49)
17t 1,81¢
— (9,650)
(3,129) (3,090
(3,000 (4,166)
36 34t
(226) (321)
(6,109 (14,466
(7,957) (17,32)
13,71¢ 22,17
576 $ 4,85¢
— 3 3,93¢




LANDEC CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Unaudited)

1. Organization, Basis of Presentation drfSummary of Significant Accounting Policies
Organization

Landec Corporation and its subsidiaries (“Landecthe “Company”) design, develop, manufacture aibdifferentiated products for food
and biomaterials markets and license technologlicgtipns to partners. The Company has two progrnepolymer technology platforms: 1)
Intelimer® polymers, and 2) hyaluronan (“HA”) bidgmers. The Company sells specialty packaged biaé¢ Smart® and GreenLine® and private
label fresh-cut vegetables and whole produce tilegs, club stores and foodservice operators, ailynin the United States, Canada and Asia through
its Apio, Inc. (“Apio”) subsidiary and sells HA-bad biomaterials through its Lifecore Biomedicak.I(f'Lifecore”) subsidiary. The Company’s HA
biopolymers are proprietary in that they are spigciarmulated for specific customers to meet dtregulatory requirements. The Company’s polymer
technologies, along with its customer relationslaipd trade names, are the foundation, and a kégrefitiating advantage upon which Landec has
its business.

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying unaudited consolidated finanté@éments of Landec have been prepared in accadeitit accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States for intdiirancial information and with the instructions feorm 10-Q and Article 10 of Regulation S-X. In
the opinion of management, all adjustments (caingjgif normal recurring accruals) have been madelwére necessary to present fairly the financial
position at November 24, 2013 and the results efatpns and cash flows for all periods presemdttiough Landec believes that the disclosures in
these financial statements are adequate to makeftirenation presented not misleading, certainimfation normally included in financial statements
and related footnotes prepared in accordance witbuating principles generally accepted in the ebhiBtates have been condensed or omitted in
accordance with the rules and regulations of treiftées and Exchange Commission. The accomparfinagcial data should be reviewed in
conjunction with the audited financial statememtd accompanying notes included in Landec's AnnegldR on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended
May 26, 2013.

The results of operations for the six months efdedember 24, 2013 are not necessarily indicativilaefresults that may be expected for an
entire fiscal year because there is some seaspiralitpio’s food business, particularly, Apio’s Fb&xport business and the order patterns of
Lifecore’s customers which may lead to significnttuations in Landec’s quarterly results of opienas.

Basis of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements are presemidbe accrual basis of accounting in accordariteWS. generally accepted accounting
principles and include the accounts of Landec Catjimn and its subsidiaries, Apio and Lifecore. lhterial inter-company transactions and balances
have been eliminated.

Arrangements that are not controlled through votingimilar rights are reviewed under the guidaiocevariable interest entities (“VIES”). A
company is required to consolidate the assetdlitiab and operations of a VIE if it is determin&xbe the primary beneficiary of the VIE.

An entity is a VIE and subject to consolidationbyf design: a) the total equity investment at rsskot sufficient to permit the entity to finance
its activities without additional subordinated fireéal support provided by any parties, includingiggholders or b) as a group the holders of thaitg
investment at risk lack any one of the followingetl characteristics: (i) the power, through votilg@its or similar rights to direct the activitieban
entity that most significantly impact the entitgsonomic performance, (ii) the obligation to absihi expected losses of the entity, or (iii) thghtito
receive the expected residual returns of the enftttig Company reviewed the consolidation guidameecancluded that its partnership interest in Apio
Cooling and its equity investments in non-publicnganies are not VIEs.

-6-




Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in confeymiith U.S. generally accepted accounting priresplequires management to make certain
estimates and judgments that affect the amountstegpin the financial statements and accompanyatgs. The accounting estimates that require
management’s most significant and subjective judgmmmclude revenue recognition; sales returnsadlosvances; recognition and measurement of
current and deferred income tax assets and ligsilithe assessment of recoverability of long-ligedets; the valuation of intangible assets and
inventory; the valuation of investments; and thiigdon and recognition of stock-based compensation

These estimates involve the consideration of cornfaletors and require management to make judgmeéhesanalysis of historical and future
trends can require extended periods of time tovesand is subject to change from period to peridte actual results may differ from management'’s
estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company records all highly liquid securitieshathree months or less from date of purchase tombaas cash equivalents. Cash
equivalents consist mainly of certificate of dep@$CDs), money market funds and U.S. Treasuriks.rmarket value of cash equivalents approxirn
their historical cost given their short-term nature

Marketable Securities

Short-term marketable securities consist of CDsdha FDIC insured and single A or better rateghotate and municipal bonds with original
maturities of more than three months at the dafofhase regardless of the maturity date. The @omplassifies all debt securities with readily
determined market values as “available for saldg @ggregate amount of CDs included in marketaargties at November 24, 2013 and May 26,
2013 was zero and $701,000, respectively. The actual maturities of the Company’s marketable géearthat are due in less than one year
represented zero and $1.3 million of its marketableurities as of November 24, 2013 and May 263 2fXspectively. The contractual maturities of
Company’s marketable securities that are due inomeo years represented zero and $251,000 ofarketable securities as of November 24, 2013
and May 26, 2013, respectively. Investments in miaide securities are carried at fair market valiile unrealized gains and losses reported as other
income. The cost of debt securities is adjustecifoortization of premiums and discounts to matufiityis amortization is recorded to interest income.
Realized gains and losses on the sale of avaifablsale securities are also recorded to interesime. During the three and six months ended
November 24, 2013 and November 25, 2012, the Coyngiginot sell any marketable securities. The obsecurities sold is based on the spe«
identification method.

Financial Instruments

The Company’s financial instruments are primariynposed of marketable securities, commercial-teaghet payables, grower advances,
notes receivable and debt instruments. For shom-testruments, the historical carrying amount appnates the fair value of the instrument. The fair
value of long-term debt and lines of credit appneedes their carrying value. Fair values for longrtdinancial instruments not readily marketable are
estimated based upon discounted future cash floywsesaailing market interest rates. Based on tlassemptions, management believes the fair marke
values of the Company’s financial instruments arematerially different from their recorded amouassof November 24, 2013 and May 26, 2013.

Investments in Non-Public Companies

The Company’s investment in Aesthetic Sciences @aton (“Aesthetic Sciences”), which is reportedsa investment in non-public
company, non-fair value, in the accompanying Caddatéd Balance Sheets, is carried at cost andtedjfigr impairment losses. Since there is no
readily available market value information, the @amy periodically reviews this investment to detieerif any other than temporary declines in ve
have occurred based on the financial stability\dability of Aesthetic Sciences.

On February 15, 2011, the Company made an investm&indset Holdings 2010 Ltd., a Canadian corfiora(“Windset”), which is

reported as an investment in non-public compariyydue, in the accompanying Consolidated Bala®leeets as of November 24, 2013 and May 26,
2013. The Company has elected to account forvissitment in Windset under the fair value optiore (Sete 4).
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Intangible Assets

The Company'’s intangible assets are comprised stbawer relationships with a finite estimated uséfalof twelve to thirteen years and
trademarks, trade names and goodwill with indeditiites.

Finite-lived intangible assets are reviewed forgilae impairment whenever events or changes imgistances occur that indicate that the
carrying amount of an asset (or asset group) mapacecoverable. Indefinite lived intangible assee reviewed for impairment at least annuatly, i
accordance with accounting guidance. For non-gobdwlefinite-lived intangible assets, the Compayforms a qualitative analysis in accordance
with ASC 350-30-35. For goodwill, the Company penis a quantitative analysis in accordance with A5G-20-35.

Partial Self-Insurance on Employee Health Plan

The Company provides health insurance benefitfigibke employees under a self-insured plan whert@éleyCompany pays actual medical
claims subject to certain stop loss limits. The @any records self-insurance liabilities based doaclaims filed and an estimate of those claims
incurred but not reported. Any projection of lossescerning the Company's liability is subject toigh degree of variability. Among the causes o
variability are unpredictable external factors sastinflation rates, changes in severity, benefiel changes, medical costs, and claims settlement
patterns. This self-insurance liability is includadaccrued liabilities and represents managembassestimate of the amounts that have not been pa
as of November 24, 2013. It is reasonably possitdethe expense the Company ultimately incursctdiffer and adjustments to future reserves may
be necessary.

Fair Value Measurements

The Company uses fair value measurement accoufatirilmancial assets and liabilities and for finedénstruments and certain other items
measured at fair value. The Company has electefaithealue option for its investment in a non-galdompany (see Note 4). The Company has not
elected the fair value option for any of its otk#gible financial assets or liabilities.

The accounting guidance established a three-teatdhy for fair value measurements, which pripetsi the inputs used in measuring fair
value as follows:

Level 1 — observable inputs such as quoted primesiéntical instruments in active markets.

Level 2 — inputs other than quoted prices in aatiaekets that are observable either directly oirgadly through corroboration with
observable market data.

Level 3 — unobservable inputs in which there ifelior no market data, which would require the Camypto develop its own assumptions.

As of November 24, 2013, the Company held certagets and liabilities that are required to be meakat fair value on a recurring basis,
including marketable securities, interest rate samgha minority interest investment in Windset.

The fair value of the Company’s marketable se@siis determined based on observable inputs teaeadily available in public markets or
can be derived from information available in pulgliguoted markets. Therefore, the Company has odtegl its marketable securities as a Level 1
measurement.

The fair value of the Comparg/interest rate swap is determined based on moplets that can be observed in a liquid marketpitiolg yield
curves, and is categorized as a Level 2 measurement




The Company has elected the fair value option obawting for its investment in Windset. The caltiola of fair value utilizes significant
unobservable inputs in the discounted cash flowetsydncluding projected cash flows, growth rated discount rates. As a result, the Company’s
investment in Windset is considered to be a Lewakeasurement investment. The change in the fakehaalue of the Company’s investment in
Windset for the three and six months ended NoveraheP013 was due to the Company’s 20.1% minonitgrest in the change in the fair market
value of Windset during those periods. In deterngrthe fair value of the investment in Windset, @@mpany utilizes the following significant
unobservable inputs in the discounted cash flowetsod

At November 24, At May 26, 2013
2013
)Annual consolidated revenue growth rates 3% 3% to 9%
IAnnual consolidated expense growth rates 3% 3% to 8%
Consolidated income tax rate 15% 15%
Consolidated discount rates 16% to 22% 18% to 28%

The revenue growth, expense growth and incomesat@xassumptions, consider the Company's best eéstohthe trends in those items
over the discount period. The discount rate assompakes into account the risk-free rate of rettine market equity risk premium and the company’s
specific risk premium (collectively the “Discourate”) and then applies an additional discountdgklof marketability of the underlying securities.
The discounted cash flow valuation model used byGbmpany has the following sensitivity to chanigesputs and assumptions (in thousands):

Impact on value «
Windset investme
as o
November 2¢
201¢

1,90(
(1,200
(100
(1,600

10% increase in annual revenue growth rates
10% increase in annual expense growth rates
10% increase in income tax rates

10% increase in discount rate

A |h P |H

Imprecision in estimating unobservable market ismatn affect the amount of gain or loss recorded foarticular position. The use of
different methodologies or assumptions to deterrttiecfair value of certain financial instrumentsicbresult in a different estimate of fair valuettae
reporting date.

The following table summarizes the fair value af @ompany’s assets and liabilities that are medsatréair value on a recurring basis, as of
November 24, 2013 and May 26, 2013 (in thousar

Fair Value at November 24, 2013 Fair Value at May 26, 2013
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Assets:
Marketable securities $ - $ - $ - % 1,54t $ - 3 -
Investment in private compar = = 37,30( = - 29,60(

Total $ - 9 - $ 37,30 $ 154 % - $ 29,60(
Liabilities:
Interest rate swap $ - 9% 3 = &) - $ 165 $ -

Total $ - 9 95 3 - % - 8 16z $ -

Revenue Recognition
The Company recognizes revenue when the earninge$s is complete, as evidenced by an agreemdntheitcustomer, transfer of title, ¢

acceptance, if applicable, as well as fixed pri@ng probable collectability. The Company recondsimy allowances, including discounts based on
arrangements with customers, as a reduction todmtbunts receivable and net revenue.
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When a sales arrangement contains multiple eleqgr@€ompany allocates revenue to each elemeadtmsa selling price hierarchy. The
relative selling price for a deliverable is basedte vendor-specific objective evidence (VSOERvhilable, thirdearty evidence (TPE), if VSOE is
available, or estimated selling price, if neitheé8®E nor TPE is available. The Company then recegmnigvenue on each deliverable in accordance
with its policies for product and service reveneeagnition. The Company is not typically able ttedmine VSOE or TPE, and therefore, uses
estimated selling prices to allocate revenue batwiee elements of the arrangement.

The Company limits the amount of revenue recognitay delivered elements to the amount that isceotingent on the future delivery of
products or services or future performance obligetior subject to customspecific cancellation rights. The Company evaluatesh deliverable in &
arrangement to determine whether they represeatatepunits of accounting. A deliverable constildeseparate unit of accounting when it has stand-
alone value, and for an arrangement that includg=naral right of return relative to the deliveprdducts or services, delivery or performance ef th
undelivered product or service is considered priebabd is substantially controlled by the Compare Company considers a deliverable to have
stand-alone value if the product or service is seldarately by the Company or another vendor dddmeiresold by the customer. Further, the revenue
arrangements generally do not include a generat afyreturn relative to the delivered products.afhthe aforementioned criteria for a separateaf
accounting are not met, the deliverable is combimit the undelivered element(s) and treated asglesunit of accounting for the purposes of
allocation of the arrangement consideration andmae recognition. The Company allocates the totahgement consideration to each separable
element of an arrangement based upon the relaliiegsprice of each element. Allocation of the simteration is determined at arrangement inception
on the basis of each unit’s relative selling priceinstances where the Company has not establfstiredalue for any undelivered element, revenue fo
all elements is deferred until delivery of the fieement is completed and all recognition critenie met.

Recently Adopted Accounting Standards
Unrecognized Tax Benefit

In July 2013, the Financial Accounting Standardaf8q"FASB") issued Accounting Standards Update 204.3-11, Income Taxes (Topic
740): Presentation of an Unrecognized Tax Benefiekva Net Operating Loss Carryforward, a Similax Tass, or a Tax Credit Carryforward Exists
(a consensus of the FASB Emerging Issues Task FO#8U 2013-11"), which provides that a liabilitglated to an unrecognized tax benefit would
be offset against a deferred tax asset for a rextatipg loss carryforward, a similar tax loss ¢aacredit carryforward if such settlement is regdior
expected in the event the uncertain tax positiatisallowed. In situations in which a net operatiogs carryforward, a similar tax loss or a taxdire
carryforward is not available at the reporting dateler the tax law of the jurisdiction or the tawlof the jurisdiction does not require, and thetgn
does not intend to use, the deferred tax asssufdr purpose, the unrecognized tax benefit wiptgsented in the financial statements as a ligkatid
will not be combined with deferred tax assets. aimeendments should be applied prospectively torméaognized tax benefits that exist at the
effective date. Retrospective application is paeditASU 2013-11 is effective for fiscal years amerim periods beginning after December 15, 2013,
with early adoption permitted. The Company hasyeadpted this standard and such adoption did aa¢ | significant impact on the Company’s
financial position or results of operations.

2. Acquisition of GreenLine Holding Company

On April 23, 2012 (the “GreenLine Acquisition DateApio acquired all of the outstanding equity ak@nLine Holding Company
(“GreenLine”) pursuant to a Stock Purchase Agredrftae “GreenLine Purchase Agreement”) in ordegxpand its product offerings and enter into
new markets such as foodservice. GreenLine, heaged in Bowling Green, Ohio, was a privately-hetsnpany and is the leading processor and
marketer of value-added, fresh-cut green beanoithMmerica. GreenLine has four processing plantseach in Ohio, Pennsylvania, Florida and
California and distribution centers in New York gdduth Carolina.
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The acquisition date fair value of the total coesédion transferred was $66.8 million, which cotesisof the following (in thousands):

Cash $ 62,90(
Contingent consideration 3,93:
Total $ 66,83

The assets and liabilities of GreenLine were reedrak their respective estimated fair values deeflate of the acquisition using generally
accepted accounting principles for business contibims. The excess of the purchase price over thedhue of the net identifiable assets acquiresl ha
been allocated to goodwill. Goodwill representsilassantial portion of the acquisition proceeds heeaof the workforce in-place at acquisition and
because of GreenLine’s long history and future pects. Management believes that there is furth@midr potential by extending GreenLine’s product
lines into new channels, such as club stores.

The following table summarizes the estimated falues of GreenLine’s assets acquired and liatslgiesumed and related deferred income
taxes, effective April 23, 2012, the date the Conypabtained control of GreenLine (in thousands).

Accounts receivable, net $ 7,057
Inventories, net 1,40¢
Property and equipment 11,66¢
Other tangible assets 30€
Intangible assets 43,50(
Total identifiable assets acquired 63,94
Accounts payable and other liabilities (8,39)
Deferred taxes (1,875
Total liabilities assumed (10,26¢6)
Net identifiable assets acquired 53,67¢
Goodwill 13,15¢
Net assets acquired $ 66,83:

The Company used a combination of the market agtlajgproaches to estimate the fair values of tlee@rine assets acquired and liabilities
assumed.

Intangible Asset

The fair value of indefinite and finite-lived intgible assets was determined using a discountedfloageiDCF) model, under an income
valuation methodology, based on management’s feaa-projections of revenues, gross profits andaijmey profits by fiscal year and assumed a 40%
effective tax rate for each year. Management totk account the historical trends of GreenLine @wedindustry categories in which GreenLine
operates along with inflationary factors, currecdr@omic conditions, new product introductions, adstales, operating expenses, capital requirements
and other relevant data when developing its prigiecThe Company believes that the level and tinwhgash flows appropriately reflect market
participant assumptions. The projected cash floas fthese intangibles were based on key assumpigisas estimates of revenues and operating
profits related to the intangibles over their retppe forecast periods. The resultant cash flowsevtleen discounted using a rate the Company balieve
is appropriate given the inherent risks associafiéid each intangible asset and reflect market pgeint assumptions.

The Company identified two intangible assets innemtion with the GreenLine acquisition: tradenamed trademarks valued at $36.0
million, which are considered to be indefinite ldesets and therefore, will not be amortized; arsdomner base valued at $7.5 million with a thirteen
year useful life. The tradename/trademark intargéslset was valued using the relief from royaltyatton method and the customer relationship
intangible asset was valued using the distributethod.

Goodwill

The excess of the consideration transferred oweefatin values assigned to the assets acquiredaitities assumed was $13.2 million on the
closing date, which represents the goodwill ameestlting from the acquisition which can be atttéile to GreenLine long history, future prospe:
and the expected operating synergies from combi@irggnLine with Apio’s fresh-cut, value-added vedp business. None of the goodwill is
expected to be deductible for income tax purpoBee.Company tests goodwill for impairment on anusiasis or sooner, if indicators of impairn
are present.
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3. Sale of Landec Ag

On June 24, 2012, Landec entered into a stock paechgreement and two licensing agreements (seeS)\atith INCOTEC® Coating and
Seed Technology Companies (“INCOTEC"), a leadingvjafer of seed and coating technology productssamndices to the seed industry.

In the stock purchase agreement, Landec sold iisyeigterest in its seed subsidiary, Landec Ag LECINCOTEC for $600,000, which
resulted in a gain of $400,000. Under accountindance, because the stock purchase agreement tessceimto at the same time the license
agreements were consummated (a multiple elemeaeagmt), a portion of the gain, or $300,000, has lseferred and will be recognized as revenue
monthly from the sale date over the seven yeaofiflae Pollinator Plus® license agreement (see Myt The remaining $100,000 of the gain was
recognized during the first quarter of fiscal y2ad 3.

4, Investments in non-public companies

In December 2005, Landec entered into a licensimgeanent with Aesthetic Sciences for the exclusiyets to use Landec's Intelimer®
materials technology for the development of deffilals worldwide under the agreement. The Compiatgived shares of preferred stock in
exchange for the license with a valuation of $1liian. Aesthetic Sciences sold the rights to ita&8tfil™ Injector System on July 16, 2010. Landec
has evaluated its investment in Aesthetic Sciefareisnpairment, utilizing a discounted cash flonasysis under the terms of the purchase agreement.
Based on the terms of the sale, the Company deteththat its investment was other than temporarifyaired and therefore, recorded an impairment
charge of $1.0 million as of May 30, 2010. The Camys carrying value of its investment in Aesth&iences is $793,000 as of November 24, 2013
and May 26, 2013. No additional impairment has bdstermined for the Company’s investment in Aegth@tiences.

On February 15, 2011, Apio entered into a sharetfase agreement (the “Windset Purchase Agreemitti’Windset. Pursuant to the
Windset Purchase Agreement, Apio purchased 15G60i@r preferred shares for $15 million and 201 mam shares for $201 that were issued by
Windset (the “Purchased Shares”). The Company’'sncomshares represent a 20.1% interest in Windsetnon-voting senior preferred shares yield
a cash dividend of 7.5% annually. The dividendaiggble within 90 days of each anniversary of theceakion of the Windset Purchase Agreement and
the first two dividend payments of $1.1 million wenade in May 2012 and May 2013. The Windset Peeiagreement includes a put and call
option, which can be exercised on the sixth ansamgr of the Windset Purchase Agreement whereby gaioexercise the put to sell its Purchased
Shares to Windset, or Windset can exercise theaallirchase the Purchased Shares from Apio, liereitase, at a price equal to 20.1% of the
appreciation in the fair market value of Windsemnfrthe date of the Company’s investment througtptiieand call date, plus the purchase price of the
Purchased Shares. Under the terms of the arrangevitarWindset, the Company is entitled to designate of five members on the Board of
Directors of Windset.

The investment in Windset does not qualify for éguiethod accounting as the investment does not theeriteria of in-substance common
stock due to returns through the annual dividentl ke non-voting senior preferred shares that aravaitable to the common stock holders. As the
put and call options require the Purchased Sharke put or called in equal proportions, the Conydeas deemed that the investment, in substance,
should be treated as a single security for purpokascounting. The Company has adopted fair vapt®n in the accounting for its investment in
Windset effective on the acquisition date. The Vaiue of the Company’s investment in Windset zeii significant unobservable inputs in the
discounted cash flow models, including projecteshdédows, revenue/expense growth rates and discates (see Note 1) and is therefore conside
Level 3 investment for fair value measurement psgso The Company believes that reporting its imuest at fair value provides its investors with
useful information on the performance of the Conyfmimvestment and the anticipated appreciatiovailne as Windset expands its business.
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The fair value of the Company’s investment in Wietdsas determined utilizing a discounted cash fioedel based on projections developed
by Windset, and considers the put and call conerrsptions. These features impact the duratioh@tash flow utilized to derive the estimated fair
value of the investment. Assumptions included edrscounted cash flow model will be evaluated trbrbased on Windset's actual and projected
operating results to determine the change in fline.

During the three and six months ended Novembe2@23 and November 25, 2012, the Company recordéd,$20 and $563,000,
respectively, in dividend income. The change infdiemarket value of the Company’s investment imtli¢et for the three months ended November
24, 2013 and November 25, 2012 was $2.3 million&h0 million, respectively, and is included in@tlincome in the Consolidated Statements of
Comprehensive Income. The change in the fair maskieie of the Company’s investment in Windset far $ix months ended November 24, 2013 and
November 25, 2012 was $7.7 million and $5.3 millimspectively, and is included in other incoméhi|m Consolidated Statements of Compreher
Income.

The Company also entered into an exclusive licagseement with Windset, which was executed in A0i®, prior to contemplation of
Apio’s investment in Windset (see Note 5).

5. Collaborative Agreements
INCOTEC

In connection with the sale of Landec Ag to INCOT&CJune 24, 2012 (see Note 3), Landec enterecistwven-year exclusive technology
license and polymer supply agreement with INCOTECHie use of Landec’s Intellicofipolymer seed coating technology for male inbreah aehich
is sold under the Pollinator Plus label. This leerioes not include the use of Intellicoat fordbmtrolled release of an active ingredient for agtural
applications which was retained by Landec. Landilde the exclusive supplier of Pollinator Pludyoer to INCOTEC during the term of the licer
agreement. Landec will receive a royalty equal®2f the revenues realized by INCOTEC from the sélor sublicense of Pollinator Plus coatings
during the first four years of the agreement an f6r the last three years of the agreement.

On June 24, 2012, Landec also entered into a ®a-gxclusive technology license and polymer supgheement with INCOTEC for the
joint development of new polymer and unique coaiftg use in seed treatment formulations. In tgigament, Landec will receive a value sr
which will be mutually agreed to by both partie®pto each application being developed.

Air Products

In March 2006, Landec entered into an exclusivense and research and development agreement wilréducts and Chemicals, Inc. (“Air
Products”). In accordance with the agreement, Lamdeeives 40% of the direct profit generated fthesale of products by Air Products occurring
after April 1, 2007, that incorporate Landec’s Imer materials.

Chiquita

The agreement with Chiquita has been renewed thrd@gember 2016 and requires Chiquita to pay argneak profit minimums to Landec
in order for Chiquita to maintain its exclusiveditse for bananas. Under the terms of the agree@kiufiiita must notify Landec before Decembét 1
of each year whether it is going to maintain itslegive license for the following calendar year #mas agree to pay the minimums for that year.
Landec was notified in November 2012 of Chiqui@esire to not maintain its exclusive license fdendar year 2013 and thus will not be required to
pay the minimum gross profit for calendar year 2088a result, the agreement has reverted to eerolusive agreement in which Chiquita will pay
the Company for membranes purchased and the Conipany entitled to sell its BreatheWay packagiechnology for bananas to others.

Windset

In June 2010, Apio entered into an exclusive lieeagreement with Windset to allow for the use aidec’s proprietary breathable packaging
to extend the shelf life of greenhouse grown cucensiipeppers and tomatoes (“Exclusive Products’acktordance with the agreement, Apio received
and recorded a one-time upfront research and dewelnot fee of $100,000 and will receive license fe@sal to 3% of net revenue of the Exclusive
Products utilizing the proprietary breathable paikg technology, with or without the BreatheWayg@demark. The ongoing license fees are subije
annual minimums of $150,000 for each of the thypes of exclusive product as each is added togheement. As of November 24, 2013, two
products have been added to the agreement.
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6. Stock-Based Compensation

In the three and six months ended November 24,,26@3Company recognized stobksed compensation expense of $361,000 and $63
respectively, which included $184,000 and $354 f@@@estricted stock unit awards and $177,000 &285%00 for stock option grants, respectively.

In the three and six months ended November 25,,26@2Company recognized stobksed compensation expense of $323,000 and $67
respectively, which included $141,000 and $298 fad@@estricted stock unit awards and $182,000 &8¥B¥O00 for stock option grants, respectively.

The following table summarizes the stock-based earagtion by income statement line item:

Three Months  Three Months Six Months Six Months
Ended Ended Ended Ended
November 24, November 25, November 24, November 25,
2013 2012 2013 2012
Research and development $ — % 104,000 $ 14,00 $ 214,00(
Sales, general and administrative $ 361,000 $ 219,00 $ 625,000 $ 457,00(
Total stock-based compensation $ 361,000 $ 323,000 $ 639,00 $ 671,00(

As of November 24, 2013, there was $2.7 millionad&l unrecognized compensation expense relatadvwested equity compensation awards
granted under the Landec equity plans. Total ex@ensxpected to be recognized over the weightedage period of 2.5 years for stock options and
2.2 years for restricted stock unit awards.

7. Diluted Net Income Per Share
The following table sets forth the computation dfitd net income per share (in thousands, exoepsipare amounts):

Three Months  Three Months Six Months Six Months

Ended Ended Ended Ended
November 24, November 25, November 24, November 25,
2013 2012 2013 2012
Numerator:
Net income applicable to Common Stockholc $ 3451 $ 891: $ 8,20: $ 13,27¢
Denominator:
Weighted average shares for basic net income pee sh 26,57 25,747 26,51 25,70¢
Effect of dilutive securities:
Stock options and restricted stock units 49¢ 792 56¢ 67¢
Weighted average shares for diluted net incomesipare 27,07( 26,53¢ 27,08 26,381
Diluted net income per share $ 0.1: $ 034 $ 0.3C $ 0.5C

For the three months ended November 24, 2013 andrNber 25, 2012, the computation of the dilutedmeime per share excludes the
impact of options to purchase 342,500 shares ar@b8Shares of Common Stock, respectively, as sophacts would be antidilutive for these peric
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For the six months ended November 24, 2013 and idbee 25, 2012, the computation of the diluted nebime per share excludes the im|
of options to purchase 273,882 shares and 84,42@slf Common Stock, respectively, as such impeatsd be antidilutive for these periods.

8. Income Taxes

The provision for income taxes for the three axdsonths ended November 24, 2013 was $1.9 millmh$®4.3 million, respectively. The
effective tax rate for the six months ended Noven2de 2013 was 34% compared to 29% for the samedmein fiscal year 2013. The effective tax
rate for the six months ended November 24, 20¥8mdifrom the statutory federal income tax rat8%fo as a result of several factors, including state
taxes, domestic manufacturing deductions, non-dédlestock-based compensation expense and thdibeftederal and state research and
development credits.

As of November 24, 2013 and May 26, 2013, the Comerd unrecognized tax benefits of approximatélp $nillion. Included in the
balance of unrecognized tax benefits as of NoveraheR013 and May 26, 2013 is approximately $853 &@d $807,000, respectively, of tax benefits
that, if recognized, would result in an adjustmterthe Company’s effective tax rate. The Compamgsthot expect its unrecognized tax benefits to
change significantly within the next twelve months.

The Company classifies interest and penaltiesa@let uncertain tax positions as a component @iridsision for income taxes. The
Company has accrued an insignificant amount ofésteand penalties relating to the income tax enutirecognized tax benefits as of November 24,
2013 and May 26, 2013.

Due to tax attribute carryforwards, the Compangubject to examination for tax years 1997 forwandU.S. tax purposes. The Compan
also subject to examination in various state jucisohs for tax years 1998 forward, none of whickrevindividually material.

9. Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost (finsfirst-out method) or market and consisted ef fibllowing (in thousands):

November 24 May 26,
2013 2013
Finished goods $ 13,72 $ 11,29"
Raw materials 9,73¢ 9,29(
Work in progress 3,40¢ 3,52¢
Total $ 26,86¢ $ 24,11%
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10. Debt
Long-term debt consists of the following (in thonds):

November 24, May 26,
2013 2013

Real estate loan agreement with General Electrpit@laCorporation (“GE Capita);

due in monthly principal and interest payments I8%060 through May 1, 2022

with interest based on a fixed rate of 4.02% p&wam $ 16,60¢ $ 17,06¢
Capital equipment loan with GE Capital; due in nbyprincipal and interest

payments of $175,356 through May 1, 2019 with egebased on a fixed rate o

4.39% per annum 10,26¢ 11,08(
Term note with BMO Harris Bank N.A. (“BMO Harris"jfue in monthly payments

of $250,000 through May 23, 2016 with interest frganonthly at LIBOR plus

2% per annum 7,50( 9,00(
Industrial revenue bonds (“IRBs”) issued by Lifegodue in annual payments

through 2020 with interest at a variable rate seghkly by the bond remarketing

agent (0.26% and 0.38% at November 24, 2013 and28ag2013, respectively) 2,80¢ 3,16(
Total 37,17, 40,30¢
Less current portion (5,989 (5,937)
Long-term portion $ 31,18t $ 34,37:

In addition to entering into the GE Capital redbés and equipment loans mentioned above, on 2BriR012 in connection with the
acquisition of GreenLine, Apio also entered intiva-year, $25.0 million asset-based working cdp#aolving line of credit, with an interest raté o
LIBOR plus 2%, with availability based on the comddion of the eligible accounts receivable andilgiéginventory (availability was $18.3 million at
November 24, 2013). Ap's revolving line of credit has an unused fee @73% per annum. At November 24, 2013 and May 26328pio had $1.0
million and $4.0 million, respectively, outstandingder its revolving line of credit.

The GE Capital real estate, equipment and lingeditagreements (collectively the “GE Debt Agreeats® are secured by liens on all of the
property of Apio and its subsidiaries. The GE D&bgteements contain customary events of default uwtiéch obligations could be accelerated or
increased. The GE Debt Agreements are guarantekdrijec and Landec has pledged its equity intéme&pio as collateral under the agreements.
The GE Debt Agreements contain customary covenant$) as limitations on the ability to (1) incudé@btedness or grant liens or negative pledges on
Apio’s assets; (2) make loans or other investmdB)spay dividends, sell stock or repurchase stwadther securities; (4) sell assets; (5) engage in
mergers; (6) enter into sale and leaseback transactnd (7) make changes in Apio’s corporatecttine. In addition, Apio must maintain a minimum
fixed charge coverage ratio of not less than 1010.0. Apio was in compliance with all financiaMemants as of November 24, 2013. Unamortized
loan origination fees for the GE Debt Agreementsen®d.1 million and $1.2 million at November 24120and May 26, 2013, respectively, and are
included in other assets in the Consolidated Bal@tweets. Amortization of loan origination feesorded to interest expense for the three months
ended November 24, 2013 and November 25, 2012 $4t®00 and $45,000, respectively. Amortizatiofoah origination fees recorded to interest
expense for the six months ended November 24, a@November 25, 2012 were $94,000 and $91,000ectsely.

On May 23, 2012, Lifecore entered into two finagcagreements with BMO Harris and/or its affiliatesllectively (the “Lifecore Loan
Agreements”):

1) A Credit and Security Agreement (the “Credirdgment”) which includes (a) a one-year, $10.0iomilasset-based working capital revolving
line of credit, with an interest rate of LIBOR plis85%, with availability based on the combinatifriifecore’s eligible accounts receivable
and inventory balances (availability was $9.4 moiiliat November 24, 2013) and with no unused feR¢aember 24, 2013 and May 26, 2C
no amounts were outstanding under the line of gradd (b) a $12.0 million term loan which matuire$our years due in monthly payments
of $250,000 with interest payable monthly baseé @ariable interest rate of LIBOR plus 2% (the ‘fiidroan”).
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2) A Reimbursement Agreement pursuant to which BNEDris caused its affiliate Bank of Montreal teug an irrevocable letter of credit in the
amount of $3.5 million (the “Letter of Credit”) wtt is securing the IRB described below.

The obligations of Lifecore under the Lifecore Losgreements are secured by liens on all of thegntgf Lifecore. The Lifecore Loan
Agreements contain customary covenants, such éstioms on the ability to (1) incur indebtednesgmnt liens or negative pledges on Lifecore’s
assets; (2) make loans or other investments; {BYipadends or repurchase stock or other securifissell assets; (5) engage in mergers; (6) énte
sale and leaseback transactions; (7) adopt cdrgaigfit plans; and (8) make changes in Lifecoreiparate structure. In addition, under the Credit
Agreement, Lifecore must maintain (a) a minimuneébcharge coverage ratio of 1.10 to 1.0 and a mimirquick ratio of 1.25 to 1.00, both of which
must be satisfied as of the end of each fiscaltguaommencing with the fiscal quarter ending Aud& 2012 and (b) a minimum tangible net worth
of $29,000,000, measured as of May 26, 2013, amnd the end of each fiscal year thereafter. Lifecaas in compliance with all financial covenant
of November 24, 2013. Unamortized loan originafiees for the Lifecore Loan Agreements were $123#800$149,000 at November 24, 2013 and
May 26, 2013, respectively, and are included ireptssets in the Consolidated Balance Sheets. Aratboh of loan origination fees recorded to
interest expense for both the three months endegiber 24, 2013 and November 25, 2012 was $13/A@0rtization of loan origination fees
recorded to interest expense for both the six mpatiods ended November 24, 2013 and November@®@®, &as $26,000.

The market value of the Company’s debt approximitse®corded value as the interest rate on eahidgtrument approximates current
market rates.

The Term Loan was used to repay Lifecore’s formedit facility with Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. (“WellBargo”). The Letter of Credit (which
replaces a letter of credit previously provideddglls Fargo) provides liquidity a nd credit suppiort the IRBs.

On August 19, 2004, Lifecore issued variable ratristrial revenue bonds (“IRBs”) which were assutmgdlandec in the acquisition of
Lifecore. The IRBs are collateralized by a banteledf credit which is secured by a first mortgagethe Company’s facility in Chaska, Minnesota. In
addition, the Company pays an annual remarketiagfgial to 0.125% and an annual letter of credibfed.75%. The maturities on the IRBs are held
in a sinking fund account, recorded in other assetise accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheetsaee paid out each year on September 1st.

11. Derivative Financial Instruments

In May 2010, the Company entered into a five-yaggrest rate swap agreement which expires on A0riR015 under its prior credit
agreement with Wells Fargo. The interest rate swap originally designated as a cash flow hedgeitofré interest payments of LIBOR and had a
notional amount of $20 million. As a result of iéerest rate swap transaction, the Company fired fiive-year period the interest rate at 4.24%
subject to market based interest rate risk on $ildmof borrowings under the credit agreementhai¥ells Fargo. The Company’s obligations under
the interest rate swap transaction as to the stdgayments were guaranteed and secured on thelssis as its obligations under the credit
agreement with Wells Fargo at the time the agre¢meas consummated. Upon entering into the new Tleyam with BMO Harris, the Company used
the proceeds from that loan to pay off the Wellggbaredit facility. The swap with Wells Fargo wast terminated upon the extinguishment of the
debt with Wells Fargo. As a result of extinguishthg debt with Wells Fargo as of May 23, 2012,4vap was no longer an effective hedge and
therefore, the fair value of the swap at the tiheedebt was extinguished of $347,000 was reversed 6ther comprehensive income and recorded in
other expense during fiscal year 2012. The faineaf the swap arrangement as of November 24, 26d3viay 26, 2013 was $95,000 and $163,000,
respectively, and is included in other accruedlii#s in the accompanying Consolidated Balanceegf
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12. Related Party

The Company provides cooling and distribution sesito both a farm and Beachside Produce LLC ("Bsde"), a commodity produce
distributor, in which the Chairman of Apio has anfitng and ownership interest, respectively. Dgitime three months ended November 24, 2013 and
November 25, 2012, the Company recognized reveofu®506,000 and $694,000, respectively, which Haen included in product sales anc
service revenues in the accompanying Consolidate@i8ents of Comprehensive Income, from the sapearfucts and providing cooling services to
these parties. During the six months ended Nover@eP013 and November 25, 2012, the Company répegmevenues of $1.1 million and $1.7
million, respectively, which have been includegmoduct sales and in service revenues in the acaoyipg Consolidated Statements of
Comprehensive Income, from the sale of productspaadiding cooling services to these parties. Télated receivable balances of $131,000 and
$671,000 are included in related party accountsivable in the accompanying Consolidated Balan@ethas of November 24, 2013 and May 26,
2013, respectively.

Additionally, unrelated to the revenue transactiabeve, the Company purchases produce from Beaglesidrm in which the Chairman of
Apio has an ownership interest, and Windset foe gathird parties. During the three months endeddwber 24, 2013 and November 25, 2012, the
Company recognized cost of product sales of $789b@ $1.7 million, respectively, which have bemriuded in cost of product sales in the
accompanying Consolidated Statements of Incoms) fhe sale of products purchased from these paBi@sng the six months ended November 24,
2013 and November 25, 2012, the Company recogmiaetiof product sales of $2.7 million and $3.8 imil| respectively, which have been include
cost of product sales in the accompanying Congelii&tatements of Income, from the sale of produatshased from these parties. The related
accounts payable of $242,000 and $786,000 arededlin related party accounts payable in the aceoyipg Consolidated Balance Sheets as of
November 24, 2013 and May 26, 2013, respecti

All related party transactions are monitored quértey the Company and approved by the Audit Corteribf the Board of Directors.
13. Stockholders’ Equity

During the three months ended November 24, 20E3Cthmpany did not grant any equity awards. Dutireggsix months ended November 24,
2013, the Company granted options to purchase @9Kbares of common stock and 128,631 of restritimek unit awards.

As of November 24, 2013 the Company has resern&hBlion shares of Common Stock for future issweaonder its current and former
equity plans.

On July 14, 2010, the Company announced that tteedBaf Directors of the Company had approved th@xishment of a stock repurchase
plan which allows for the repurchase of up to $illion of the Companys Common Stock. The Company may repurchase its amstock from tim
to time in open market purchases or in privatelyatiated transactions. The timing and actual numlbshares repurchased is at the discretion of
management of the Company and will depend on &tyaoif factors, including stock price, corporatel aegulatory requirements, market conditions,
the relative attractiveness of other capital delesit opportunities and other corporate prioritise stock repurchase program does not obligate
Landec to acquire any amount of its common stocktha program may be modified, suspended or temedhat any time at the Company's discretion
without prior notice. During both the three and signths ended November 24, 2013, the Company digurchase any shares on the open market.

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholdergquity (in thousands, except share amounts):

November 24, 2013

Common Stock Shares

Balance at May 26, 2013 26,402,224
Stock options exercised, net of shares tendered 210,28:
Vested restricted stock units, net of shares terttder 38,05¢
Balance at November 24, 2013 26,650,58
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November 24, 2013

Common Stock

Balance at May 26, 2013 $ 26
Stock options exercised, net of shares tendered 1
Vested restricted stock units, net of shares terttder —
Balance at November 24, 2013 $ 27

Additional Paid-in Capital

Balance at May 26, 2013 $ 126,25¢
Stock options exercised, net of shares tendered 1,25:
Vested restricted stock units, net of shares testter —
Taxes incurred by Company for RSUs vested (293)
Stock-based compensation expense 63¢
Tax-benefit from stock based compensation expense 17t
Balance at November 24, 2013 $ 128,083:

Retained Earnings

Balance at May 26, 2013 $ 52,40¢
Net income 8,20:
Balance at November 24, 2013 $ 60,617

Non controlling Interest

Balance at May 26, 2013 $ 1,721

Non controlling interest in net incon 101

Distributions to non controlling interest (22€)

Balance at November 24, 2013 $ 1,59¢
14. Business Segment Reporting

The Company manages its business operations ththuogg strategic business units. Based upon toeniation reported to the chief
operating decision maker, who is the Chief Exeau@ifficer, the Company has the following reporta#gments : the Food Products Technology
segment, the Food Export segment and the Hyalurbaaed Biomaterials segment.

The Food Products Technology segment markets aric ppecialty packaged whole and fresh-cut fruit eegetables, the majority of which
incorporate the BreatheWay specialty packagingtferretail grocery, club store and food serviceigtry. In addition, the Food Products Technology
segment sells BreatheWay packaging to partnensdiofvegetable products. The Food Export segmerdistsrof revenues generated from the
purchase and sale of primarily whole commoditytfauid vegetable products to Asia and domesticaltg. HA-based Biomaterials segment sells
products utilizing hyaluronan, a naturally occugripolysaccharide that is widely distributed in éx¢racellular matrix of connective tissues in both
animals and humans, for medical use primarily ew@phthalmic, Orthopedic and Veterinary marketgpGrate licenses Landec’s patented
Intellicoat® seed coatings to the farming industngl licenses the Company'’s Intelimer polymers fmspnal care products and other industrial
products. The Corporate segment also includes geaed administrative expenses, non-Food Prodwsthiology and non HA-based Biomaterials
interest income and income tax expenses. Begirinifigcal year 2013, the Food Products Technoltlyy,Food Export and the Hyaluronan-based
Biomaterials segments include charges for corp@ateices and tax sharing allocated from the Cateassegment. All of the assets of the Company
are located within the United States of America.
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The Company'’s international sales were as follawsn(llions):

Three Months Ended

Six Months Ended

November 24

November 2&

November 24

November 25

2013 2012 2013 2012
Taiwan $ 12¢ $ 12¢ % 24¢ $ 25.¢
Canada $ 10z $ 6.1 $ 19¢ $ 12.z
China $ 37 $ 2¢€ $ 58 $ 3.7
Indonesia $ 24 % 74 $ 4¢ 3 13.t
Japan $ 21 $ 28 $ 52 $ 5.9
Belgium $ 08 $ 1€ $ 2C % 4.€
All Other Countries $ 4¢ 3 4€ $ 102 $ 8.8
Operations by segment consisted of the followinglfousands):
Food Products HA-based
Three Months Ended Nov. 24, 2013 Technology Food Export Biomaterials Corporate TOTAL
Net sales $ 88,09( $ 23,03 $ 8,771 $ 12¢ $ 120,02¢
International sales $ 10,34t $ 2294( % 3,36¢ $ — 3 36,65!
Gross profit $ 822( $ 1.82( $ 3,62t % 69 $ 13,73¢
Net income (loss $ 2,008 $ 7271 $ 611 $ 106 $ 3,451
Depreciation and amortization $ 1,30¢ $ 1 $ 604 $ 36 $ 1,94t
Dividend income $ 281 $ — $ — % — 3 281
Interest income $ 2 $ — 3 4 $ — 3 46
Interest expense $ 35¢ $ — % 8¢ $ — % 43€
Income tax expense $ 1,461 $ 205 % 17z $ 36 $ 1,87¢
Three Months Ended Nov. 25, 2012
Net sales $ 78,59: $ 28,11t $ 7,74C $ 207 $ 114,65«
International sales $ 5,95¢ $ 28,05 $ 4.22: $ — % 38,23¢
Gross profit $ 13,10: $ 2,03z $ 3,11¢ $ 207 $ 18,45¢
Net income (loss $ 9,21: $ 86€ $ 33 $ (1,509 $ 8,91:
Depreciation and amortization $ 1,17¢  $ 1 $ 59z $ 38 3 1,80¢
Dividend income $ 281 $ — 9 — % — 3 281
Interest income $ 7% — % 26 $ — $ 33
Interest expense $ 427 % — ¢ 71 $ — $ 49¢
Income tax expense $ 1,761 $ 28¢ $ 112 % 75¢ % 2,92(
Six Months Ended Nov. 24, 2013
Net sales $ 167,52t $ 44430 $ 17,36: $ 18¢ $ 229,50!
International sales $ 19,82 $ 44.32¢  $ 7,74 $ — 3 71,89t
Gross profit $ 17,10 $ 3,02t $ 6,01 $ 127 $ 26,26¢
Net income (loss $ 9,271 $ 1,00: $ 23t $ (2,306 $ 8,20t
Depreciation and amortization $ 2526 $ 2 % 1,18¢ $ 71 $ 3,78
Dividend income $ 56: $ — % — % — $ 562
Interest income $ 5 % — % 10C $ — % 10&
Interest expense $ 73z 3% — $ 13t $ — $ 867
Income tax expense $ 1,966 $ 28: $ 66 $ 2,03 % 4,34¢
Six Months Ended Nov. 25, 2012
Net sales $ 147,22. $ 53,47 $ 15,71 $ 31¢ $ 216,72¢
International sales $ 12,18: $ 53,36t $ 9,02¢ $ — 3 74,57
Gross profit $ 23,04F 3% 337¢ % 548: $ 31¢ % 32,22:
Net income (loss $ 15,12¢ $ 1,178 $ 26 $ (3,050 $ 13,27¢
Depreciation and amortization $ 241C $ 2 % 1,17 $ 74 3 3,661
Dividend income $ 56 $ — % — % — % 562
Interest income $ 8 $ — % 50 $ — % 58
Interest expense $ 88z $ — % 157 $ — % 1,03¢
Income tax expense $ 3,73: % 391 % 9 3% 1,351 $ 5,48¢
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During the six months ended November 24, 2013 aoveber 25, 2012, sales to the Company’s top fistarners accounted for 43% and
36%, respectively, of revenues. The Company’swapdustomers from the Food Products Technology segjaccounted for 20% and 11% for six
months ended November 24, 2013 and 13% and 10%éamix months ended November 25, 2012. The Comegpgcts that, for the foreseeable
future, a limited number of customers may contitaiaccount for a significant portion of its net eaves.

Item 2. Management’s Discussion and Analysis ofifriancial Condition and Results of Operations

The following discussion should be read in conjiorctvith the unaudited consolidated financial stedats and accompanying notes included
in Part I-ltem 1 of this Form 10-Q and the auditedsolidated financial statements and accompamyatgs and Management’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Ggiems included in Landec’s Annual Report on ForKlfor the fiscal year ended May 26, 2013.

Except for the historical information containeddiar the matters discussed in this report are fahh@oking statements within the meaning
Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 193vse forward-looking statements involve certéks and uncertainties that could cause actual
results to differ materially from those in the f@md-looking statements. Potential risks and uno#iés include, without limitation, those mentioniad
this Form 10-Q and those mentioned in Landec’s AahReport on Form 16for the fiscal year ended May 26, 2013. Landedantakes no obligatic
to update or revise any forward-looking stateméntsrder to reflect events or circumstances that exése after the date of this report.

Critical Accounting Policies and Use of Estimates

There have been no material changes to the Congperitytal accounting policies which are includeal @escribed in the Form 10-K for the
fiscal year ended May 26, 2013 filed with the Sémg and Exchange Commission on August 6, 2013.

The Company

Landec Corporation and its subsidiaries (“Landeacthe “Company”) design, develop, manufacture aitdsfferentiated products for food
and biomaterials markets and license technologliGgtipns to partners. The Company has two progrjepolymer technology platforms: 1)
Intelimer® polymers, and 2) hyaluronan (“HA") bidgmers. The Company’s HA biopolymers are proprigiarthat they are specially formulated for
specific customers to meet strict regulatory regqagents. The Company’s polymer technologies, aloitly it customer relationships and trade names,
are the foundation, and a key differentiating adege upon which Landec has built its business.dmpany sells specialty packaged branded Eat
Smart and GreenLine and private label freshvegetables and whole produce to retailers, sfates and foodservice operators, primarily inUnéed
States, Canada and Asia through its Apio, Inc. {8®psubsidiary and sells HA-based biomaterial®tigh its Lifecore Biomedical, Inc. (“Lifecore”)
subsidiary.

Landec has three core businesses — Food Produdtedlegy, Food Export and HA-based Biomaterialsaeheof which is described below.

Landec’s wholly-owned subsidiary, Apio, Inc. (“Afjpoperates our Food Products Technology businelsish combines our proprietary
BreatheWay® food packaging technology with the bédjtees of a large national food supplier and veadded produce processor which sells prod
under the Eat Smart® and GreenLine® brands. In ‘Apialue-added operations, produce is processedrbsning, washing, mixing, and packaging
into bags and trays that in most cases incorptuatelec’s BreatheWay membrane technology. The Beddly membrane increases shelf life and
reduces shrink (waste) for retailers and, for @éegaoducts, eliminates the need for ice duringdistribution cycle and helps to ensure that coressm
receive fresh produce by the time the product mékesgay through the supply chain. Apio also licenghe BreatheWay technology to partners sut
Chiquita Brands International, Inc. (“Chiquita”)rfpackaging and distribution of bananas and to \&&hdHolding 2010 Ltd., a Canadian corporation
(“Windset”), for packaging of greenhouse grown anbers, peppers and tomatoes.
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Apio also operates the Food Export business thrisgiubsidiary, Cal Ex Trading Company (“Cal-ExThe Export business purchases and
sells whole fruit and vegetable products predontigdn Asian markets.

Landec’s wholly-owned subsidiary, Lifecore Biomeajdnc. (“Lifecore”), operates our HA-based Biomdls business and is principally
involved in the development and manufacture of petsl utilizing hyaluronan, a naturally occurringysaccharide that is widely distributed in the
extracellular matrix of connective tissues in arlgriacluding humans. Lifecore’s products are sotitldwide for use primarily in three medical areas:
(1) Ophthalmic, (2) Orthopedic and (3) Veterindryaddition, Lifecore provides specialized asefitiand finish services in a cGMO validated
manufacturing facility for supplying commercialinital and preclinical products. Lifecore also supplies limitesbatities of HA, and raw materials
customers pursuing other medical applications, sischesthetic surgery, medical device coatingsjgiengineering and pharmaceuticals. Lifecore
leverages its fermentation process to manufactieeipm, pharmaceutical-grade HA, and uses its asiifing capabilities to provide private-labeled
HA finished goods to its customers. Furthermorégdare manufactures and sells it own HA-basedHexsgoods in several foreign markets. Lifecore
is known as a premium supplier of HA with experfiséormulation and filling of difficult to handlproducts. Its name recognition allows Lifecore to
attract new customers and sell new products aredt tff services with a minimal marketing and satésstructure.

Landec also develops proprietary polymer technelogind applies them in a wide range of applicafiiocisiding seed coatings and
treatments, controlled release systems, persoraipcaducts and pressure sensitive adhesives. Hpgdieations are commercialized through
partnerships with third parties resulting in licergsand royalty revenues. For example, INCOTEC kgdNorth America, Inc. (INCOTEC”) has an
exclusive license to our Intellicoat® seed coating treatments technology, Air Products and Chdmitiec. (“Air Products”) has an exclusive license
to our Intelimer polymers for personal care produtd Nitta Corporation (“Nitta”) licenses Landegroprietary pressure sensitive adhesives fom
the manufacture of electronic components by thestamers.

Landec was incorporated on October 31, 1986. Weptated our initial public offering in 1996 and cDommon Stock is listed on The
NASDAQ Global Select Market under the sym“LNDC.” Our principal executive offices are locatad3603 Haven Avenue, Menlo Park, California
94025 and our telephone number is (650) 306-1650.

Description of Core Business

Landec participates in three core business segnfemts Products Technology, Food Export and Hyalansbased Biomaterials.

LandecCorporation

FPropristary Polm er Science Technology
|

Food Product
Technolegy

Food Export HA-based Bomaieniss

Food Products Technology Business

Based in Guadalupe, California, Apio’s primary lmesis is fresh-cut and whole value-added produgtsapity packaged in our proprietary
BreatheWay packaging. The fresh-cut value-addedymts business markets a variety of freshand whole vegetables to the top retail grocégins
club stores and food service operators. Durinditieal year ended May 26, 2013, Apio shipped apipnaiely twenty-eight million cartons of produce
to its customers throughout North America, primyairl the United States.
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There are five major distinguishing characteristitépio that provide competitive advantages infle®d Products Technology market:

Value-Added Supplier: Apio has structured its business as a marketeselhel of branded and private label fresh-cut ahdlervalue-added
produce. It is focused on selling products undeE#t Smart and GreenLine brands and private labeds for its fresh-cut and whole value-
added products. As retail grocery chains, clubest@nd food service operators consolidate, Apieei§positioned as a single source of a
broad range of products.

Reduced Farming Risks:Apio reduces its farming risk by not taking ownépsbf farmland, and instead, contracts with growergroduce and
during certain times of the year enters into jeitures with growers for produce. The year-rowngtang of produce is a key component to
the fresh-cut and whole value-added processingibssi

Access to Customer BaseApio has strategically invested in the rapidly ginogvfresh-cut and whole value-added business. Apialue-added
processing plant in Guadalupe, CA, is automatel state-of-the-art vegetable processing equipmigrib operates one large central
processing facility in one of the lowest cost gnogviegions in California, the Santa Maria Valleyddor the majority of its non-green bean
vegetable business, use its packaging technolagyationwide delivery. With the acquisition of Gnkééne, Apio how has three East Coast
processing facilities and five East Coast distidoutenters for nationwide delivery of green beamd recently Apio began processing non-
green bean products in one of our East Coast psozeacilities to meet the next day delivery neeflsustomers.

Expanded Product Line Using Technology and Unique Bnds: Apio, through the use of its BreatheWay packageuhology, is introducing
new value-added products each year. These new giroffarings range from various sizes of freshizagged products, to vegetable trays, to
whole produce, to vegetable salads and snack pBcking the last twelve months, Apio has introduetsl’en new unique products.

Products Currently in Approximately 80% of U.S. Retail Grocery Stores: With the acquisition of GreenLine, Apio now hasghuiots in
approximately 80% of all U.S. retail grocery storEBis gives Apio the opportunity to cross sell Batart value-added products to GreenLine
customers and GreenLine value-added products t&att customers.

Apio established its Apio Packaging division in 8006 advance the sales of BreatheWay packagingodatyy for shelf-life sensitive
vegetables and fruit to third party partners o@gifiApio’s core value-added business. The Comsaspyecialty packaging for case liner products
extends the shelf life of certain produce commaeditip to 50%. This shelf life extension can endiseutilization of alternative distribution straieg
to gain efficiencies or reach new markets whilentaning product quality to the end customer.

Apio Packaging’s first program has concentratedamanas and was formally consummated when Apigezhteto an agreement to supply
Chiquita with its proprietary banana packaging tetbgy. This global agreement applies to the ripgnconservation and shelf-life extension of
bananas. The BreatheWay packaging technology extiedshelf-life of bananas by approximately teysda

In June 2008, Apio entered into a collaboratioreagrent with Seminis Vegetable Seeds, Inc., a wimliged subsidiary of Monsanto
Company (“Monsanto”), to develop novel broccoli ardiliflower products for the exclusive sale by é&\pi the North American market. These novel
products are packaged in Landec’s proprietary Bed&ftay packaging and commercial sales started i@ Bfdler Monsanto’s Beneforte® brand to
retail grocery and club store chains.

In June 2010, Apio entered into an exclusive lieeagreement with Windset for Windset to utilize tao’'s proprietary breathable packaging
to extend the shelf life of greenhouse grown cucensitpeppers and tomatoes. Commercial sales of3Mimpeppers in BreatheWay packaging have
recently begun.

On February 15, 2011, Apio entered into a sharetfage agreement (the “Purchase Agreement”) wittdgéin Pursuant to the Purchase
Agreement, Apio purchased 150,000 senior prefeshedes for $15 million and 201 common shares fod%the “Purchased Shares”). The Company’
common shares represent a 20.1% interest in Win@letnon-voting senior preferred shares yieldsh cividend of 7.5% annually. The dividend is
payable within 90 days of each anniversary of thexation of the Purchase Agreement. The Purchaseefgent includes a put and call option, which
can be exercised on the sixth anniversary of thielaise Agreement whereby Apio can exercise théopsgll its Purchased Shares to Windset, or
Windset can exercise the call to purchase the RaethShares from Apio, in either case, at a poaldgo 20.1% of the appreciation in the fair marke
value of Windset from the date of the Company’sstment through the put/call date, plus the pueipaise of the Purchased Shares. Under the terms
of the arrangement with Windset, the Company igledtto designate one of five members on the Bad@irectors of Windset.
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Food Export Business

Food Export revenues consist of revenues genefiatedthe purchase and sale of primarily whole comitydfruit and vegetable products
primarily to Asia through Apio’s export company,|&x. The Food Export business is a buy/sell bussrthat realizes a margin on average in tB&%-
range.

Hyaluronan-based Biomaterials Business
Our HA-based Biomaterials business, operated thrawy Lifecore subsidiary, was acquired by Lande@pril 30, 2010.

Lifecore uses its fermentation process and asépticulation and filling expertise to be a leadethe development of HA-based products for
multiple applications and to take advantage of Ridndevice and drug opportunities which leverageekpertise in manufacturing and aseptic syringe
filling capabilities. Elements of Lifecore’s strgieinclude the following:

. Establish strategic relationships with market leed&ifecore will continue to develop applications fmoducts with partners who
have strong marketing, sales and distribution citipab to end-user markets. Through its strongutapon and history of providing premium HA
products, Lifecore has been able to establish teng-relationships with the market leading ophtt@bgy and orthopedics companies.

. Expand medical applications for H®ue to the growing knowledge of the unique chiargstics of HA, and the role it plays in
normal physiology, Lifecore continues to identifydgpursue further uses for HA in other medical &gilons, such as wound care, aesthetic surgery,
drug delivery, device coatings and pharmaceuti¢alsther applications may involve expanding proaksgelopment activity and/or additional
licensing of technology.

. Utilize manufacturing infrastructure to pursue catt aseptic filling and fermentation opportunitiésfecore is currently utilizing its
manufacturing capabilities to provide contract gsrs for customers related to specialized aseiiitigf fermentation and purification and continues
seek new opportunities for contract services.

. Maintain flexibility in product development and plyprelationshipsLifecore’s vertically integrated development andnuifacturing
capabilities allow it to establish a variety of t@ctual relationships with global corporate pargn&ifecore’s role in these relationships extefidm
supplying HA raw materials to manufacturing of agsply-packaged, finished sterile products to deping and manufacturing its own proprietary
products.

Other Non-Core Businesses
Seeds Business — Intellicoat Seed Coatings

Landec developed Intellicoat seed coating appbeatiare designed to control seed germination timimgease crop yields, reduce risks and
extend crop-planting windows. Pollinator Plus® oogé, commercialized by Landec over a decade aga;larently available on male inbred corn
used by seed companies as a method for spreadiingapon to increase yields and reduce risk in pnheduction of hybrid seed corn. This business
sold to INCOTEC in June 2012.

Industrial Materials and Adhesivt

Landec’s industrial product development strategues on coatings, catalysts, resins, additivesadhdsives in the polymer materials
market. During the product development stage, e @any identifies corporate partners to supporbtigoing development and testing of these
products, with the ultimate goal of licensing thpplcations at the appropriate time. The Compacsrised it proprietary pressure sensitive adhesd
Nitta for use in the manufacturing of electroniengmnents by their customers and the Company hassiéd its latent thermoset catalysts technolo
Air Products and Chemicals, Inc. for use in therea@hemistries such as epoxy, polyurethane, anaturaded polyester.
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Personal Care and Cosmetic Applicatic

Landec’s personal care and cosmetic applicatioagesfy is focused on supplying Intelimer material;ndustry leaders for use in lotions and
creams, as well as color cosmetics, lipsticks aiddare. The Company's exclusive marketing parthierProducts, is currently shipping products to
L'Oreal, Mentholatum, Louis Widmer, Aris Cosmetinsd other companies for use in lotions and credimes rights to develop and sell Landec’s
polymers for personal care products were licensediit Products in March 2006 along with the lateatalyst rights. The Company’s Intelimer
polymers are currently in over 50 personal carelpcts worldwide.

Results of Operations

Revenueqin thousands):

Threemonths  Three months Six months Six months
ended 11/24/13 ended ended 11/24/13 ended 11/25/12
11/25/12 Change Change

Food Products Technology $ 88,09( $ 78,59: 12% $ 167,52t $ 147,22: 14%
Food Export 23,03 28,11¢ (18%) 44.43( 53,47 (17%)
Total Apio 111,12: 106,70 4% 211,95t¢ 200,69t 6%
HA-based Biomaterials 8,771 7,74( 13% 17,36 15,71 11%
Corporate 12¢ 207 (38%) 18€ 31¢ (42%)
Total Revenues $ 120,02t $ 114,65« 5% $ 229,50 $ 216,72¢ 6%

Food Products Technology (Apio)

Apio’s Food Products Technology revenues consistwénues generated from the sale of specialtygogzkfresh-cut and whole value-added
processed vegetable products that are washed akdgeal in our proprietary packaging and sold ugeo’s Eat Smart and GreenLine brands and
various private labels. In addition, Food Proddatshnology revenues include the revenues geneiiaedApio Cooling, LP, a vegetable cooling
operation in which Apio is the general partner vé&t60% ownership position and from the sale of Br@&/ay packaging to license partners.

The increase in Apio’s Food Products Technologgneees for the three and six months ended NoventhedA3 compared to the same
periods of last year was primarily due to a 6% &% respectively, increase in unit volume salesltieg) primarily from expanded product offerings
and a 12% and 11%, respectively, unit volume ireea the fresh-cut vegetable category, accordingi¢lsen, coupled with new product
introductions which typically have a higher pricer pinit than historical offerings.

Food Export (Apio)

Apio Food Export revenues consist of revenues ggeéifrom the purchase and sale of primarily witcolemodity fruit and vegetable
products to Asia by Cal-Ex. Apio records revenueatdp the sale price to third parties becausekiés title to the product while in transit.

The decrease in revenues in Agi¢ood Export business for the three and six maenked November 24, 2013 compared to the sameds
last year was due to a 14% and 11%, respectivelyredse in unit volume sales primarily as a redutew Indonesian import quotas on fruit.

HA-based Biomaterials (Lifecore)
Lifecore’s HA-based Biomaterials business prindipgenerates revenue through the sale of produetsaming HA. Lifecore primarily sells

products to customers in three medical areas: phtl@almic, which represented approximately 70%iéddore’s revenues in fiscal year 2013, (2)
Orthopedic, which represented approximately 20%ifefcore’s revenues in fiscal year 2013 and (3)evietary/Other.
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The increase in Lifecors’revenues for the three and six months ended Nioseg#, 2013 compared to the same periods lastwaadue to
34% and 38%, respectively, increase in revenuégeaore’s aseptic filling business from increasades to existing customers partially offset by a
38% decrease in revenues for both periods in Ligsdermentation business for Ophthalmic prodpeisarily due to the timing of shipments within
fiscal year 2014 compared to fiscal year 2013.

Corporate

Corporate revenues are generated from the licergjrgements with Air Products, Nitta and INCOTEC.

The decrease in Corporate revenues for the thésiamonths ended November 24, 2013 compareckteame periods of the prior year was
not significant.

Gross Profit (in thousands):

Threemonths  Three months Six months Six months
ended 11/24/13  ended 11/25/12 Change ended 11/24/13  ended 11/25/12 Change
Food Products Technology $ 8,22( $ 13,10: (37) $ 17,10 $ 23,04¢ (26%)
Food Export 1,82( 2,03¢ (11%) 3,02t 3,37¢ (10%)
Total Apio 10,04( 15,13¢ (34%) 20,12¢ 26,42: (24%)
HA-based Biomaterials 3,62¢ 3,11¢ 16% 6,01: 5,48: 10%
Corporate 69 207 (67%) 127 31¢ (60%)
Total Gross Profit $ 13,73 $ 18,45¢ (26%) $ 26,26¢ $ 32,22: (18%)

General

There are numerous factors that can influence gnad# including product mix, customer mix, manctiaring costs, volume, sale discounts
and charges for excess or obsolete inventory, teerefew. Many of these factors influence or aterielated with other factors. The Company
includes in cost of sales all of the costs relatetthe sale of products in accordance with U.Segaly accepted accounting principles. These costs
include the following: raw materials (including plece, casein, seeds and packaging), direct laberhead (including indirect labor, depreciationd an
facility related costs) and shipping and shippiated costs. The following are the primary reasonghe changes in gross profit for the three sird
months ended November 24, 2013 compared to the paritals last year as outlined in the table above.

Food Products Technology (Apio)

The decrease in gross profit for Apio’s Food Prasldechnology business for the three and six mogrlded November 24, 2013 compared
to the same period last year was primarily due tehmhigher than expected raw produce sourcingressiting from lower yields due to a variety of
factors, most importantly the heavy rains in thelMeést and along the East Coast and cooler thanaldemperatures in California. The higher

sourcing costs reduced Apio’s gross profit by agpnately $4.4 million and $6.8 million, respectiyepartially offset by the gross profit generated
from the 12% and 14%, respectively, increase iemees.

Food Export (Apio)

Apio’s Food Export business is a buy/sell busiritbasrealizes a gross margin in the 5-8% range.

The decrease in gross profit for Apio’s export bass during the three and six months ended Novef#h&013 compared to the same
periods last year was due to the 18% and 17%, cégply, decrease in revenues. The decreases émues were higher than the decreases in gross
profit because of favorable product mix changdsigber margin products which resulted in a highesg margin during the three and six months

ended November 24, 2013 of 7.9% and 6.8%, respdgtispompared to a gross margin of 7.2% and 6.8%pectively, during the three and six months
ended November 25, 2012.
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HA-based Biomaterials (Lifecore)

The increase in gross profit during the three andn®nths ended November 24, 2013 compared toahmee periods last year was primarily
due to the 13% and 11%, respectively, increasevarnues.

Corporate

The decrease in Corporate gross profit for theetlared six months ended November 24, 2013 comparthe tsame period of the prior year
was not significant.

Operating Expensegin thousands):

Threemonths  Three months Six months Six months
ended 11/24/13 ended ended 11/24/13 ended 11/25/12
11/25/12 Change Change
Research and Devel opment:
Apio $ 33€ $ 274 23% $ 611 $ 602 1%
Lifecore 1,26t 1,21¢ 4% 2,57( 2,36 9%
Corporate 31¢ 621 (49%) 664 1,34¢ (51%)
Total R&D $ 1,91¢ $ 2,11z (9%) $ 3,84t $ 4,315 (11%)
Selling, General and
Administrative and other:
Apio $ 5811 $ 2,33¢ 14% $ 11,06¢ $ 7,821 41%
Lifecore 1,06¢ 1,12¢ (5%) 2,16: 2,39t (10%)
Corporate 1,76( 1,79¢ (2%) 4,04: 3,59:¢ 12%
Total S,G&A $ 8,63¢ $ 5,252 64% $ 17,26¢ $ 13,80¢ 25%

Research and Development (R&D)

Landec’s research and development consisted ptimadrproduct development and commercializatiotidtives. Research and development
efforts at Apio are focused on the Company’s petpry BreatheWay membranes used for packaging peodiith a focus on extending the shelf-life
of sensitive vegetables and fruit. In the Lifecbusiness, the research and development efforfeemsed on new products and applications for HA-
based biomaterials. For Corporate, the researclilevelopment efforts are primarily focused on sufipg the development and commercialization of
new products and new technologies in our food aAdHisinesses.

The decrease in R&D expenses for the three anehaiths ended November 24, 2013 compared to the garials last year was primarily
due to a decrease in Corporate R&D because of dngp@ny transitioning away from R&D and licensindjatmorations to focusing R&D efforts on its
core food and HA businesses.

Selling, General and Administrative

Selling, general and administrative (“S,G&A”) exges consist primarily of sales and marketing expeassociated with Landec’s product
sales and services, business development expem$asadf and administrative expenses. Included @82\ for Apio for the three and six months
ended November 25, 2012 is the $3.9 million revesSthe earn-out liability which was recorded aduction of operating expenses.

The increase in S,G&A expenses for the three anthenths ended November 24, 2013 compared to the gariod last year was primarily
due to the $3.9 million reversal of the earn-caibility associated with the GreenLine acquisitiomidg the second quarter of last year, partialfgetf
by no bonuses being accrued at Apio or Corporatthéothree and six months ended November 24, 80230 actual results being below plan
compared to last year when bonuses were accruajcasth the three and six months ended Novembe?2@B2.
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Other (in thousands):

Threemonths  Three months Six months Six months

ended 11/24/13  ended 11/25/12 Change ended 11/24/13  ended 11/25/12 Change
Dividend I ncome $ 281 $ 281 — 56 $ 562 —
Interest Income $ 46 $ 33 39% $ 108 $ 58 81%
I nterest Expense $ (436) $ (49¢) (12%) $ (867 $ (1,039 (17%)
Other Income $ 2,30C $ 98¢ 134% $ 7,70C $ 5,241 47%
Income Taxes $ (1,879 $ (2,920 (36%) $ (4,349 $ (5,489 (21%)
Non controlling Int. $ 42 $ (59 (29%) $ (101) ¢ (15€) (35%)

Dividend Income

Dividend income is derived from the dividends aecton our $15 million preferred stock investmeniimdset which yields a cash dividend
of 7.5% annually. There was no change in dividerdine for the three and six months ended Novenhe2@1.3 compared to the same periods last
year.

Interest Income

The increase in interest income for the three @nchenths ended November 24, 2013 compared toahee periods last year was not
significant.

Interest Expense

The decrease in interest expense during the timesia months ended November 24, 2013 compardtetedme periods last year was due to
the Company paying down its debt by $12.6 milliomidg the last twelve months.

Other Income (Expense)

The increase in other income for the three andngirths ended November 24, 2013 is due to the iserigathe fair market value of our
Windset investment.

Income Taxes

The decrease in the income tax expense for the #ie six months ended November 24, 2013 is dae&s&% and 33% decrease, respecti
in net income before taxes compared to the samedsdiast year. The effective tax rate for the ¢hsad six months ended November 24, 2013 was
35% and 34%, respectively, compared to 25% and 288pectively, for the same periods last year. affective tax rates for last year were lower than
this year as a result of the $3.9 million earnamjtistment which was not subject to income tax.

Non controlling Interest

The non controlling interest consists of the lidifgartners’ equity interest in the net income ofcA@ooling, LP.

The change in the non controlling interest fortthree and six months ended November 24, 2013 cadparthe same periods last year was
not significant.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

As of November 24, 2013, the Company had cash asid equivalents of $5.8 million, a net decreas&7dd million from $13.7 million at
May 26, 2013.
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Cash Flow from Operating Activities

Landec generated $4.3 million of cash from opegadictivities during the six months ended Novemier2D13, compared to $2.4 million for
the six months ended November 25, 2012. The prirsamyces of cash from operating activities durhmgygix months ended November 24, 2013 were
from (1) generating $8.3 million of net income, §4).4 million of noneash depreciation/amortization and stock based eosgtion expenses and (¢
$4.1 million net increase in deferred tax liabditi These sources of cash were partially offs¢héys7.7 million of non-cash income generated from
the fair market value change of the Company’s itmest in Windset and from a net increase of $4Iianiin working capital. The primary factors
which increased working capital during the first sionths of fiscal year 2014 were (1) a $5.7 milliocrease in receivables primarily due to theriiy
of receipts at Apio and from November 2013 reverfaeg\pio being $6.4 million higher than Ap@May 2013 revenues, (2) a $2.8 million increas
inventory primarily at Lifecore for shipments plathfor the third quarter of fiscal 2014 and (3)1ad8million increase in prepaid and other current
assets due to grower advances at Apio. These sesea working capital were partially offset by4aZmillion increase in current liabilities resabji
primarily from the timing of payments at Apio an&®@9 million increase in Apio’s cost of sales imvember 2013 compared to May 2013.

Cash Flow from Investing Activities

Net cash used in investing activities for the sbntins ended November 24, 2013 was $6.1 million @egbto $5.2 million for the same
period last year. The primary uses of cash in itiwgsctivities during the first six months of fagear 2014 were for the purchase of $7.7 milobn
equipment primarily to support the growth of theid\palue-added and Lifecore businesses.

Cash Flow from Financing Activities

Net cash used in financing activities for the sianths ended November 24, 2013 was $6.1 million @yegbto $14.5 million for the same
period last year. The net cash used in financitigiies during the first six months of fiscal ye2014 was primarily due to the $6.1 million of
payments on the Company'’s lines of credit and ltargy debt. The primary use of cash from financictivdies during the first six months of last year
was from a $10 million earn out payment from thietore acquisition, $9.7 million of which was reded as a contingent liability at the time of the
acquisition and was therefore classified as a fimanactivity.

Capital Expenditures

During the six months ended November 24, 2013, eaquirchased equipment to support the growth of\phie value-added and Lifecore
businesses. These expenditures represented thatynafdhe $7.7 million of capital expenditures.

Debt

On August 19, 2004, Lifecore issued variable ratristrial revenue bonds (“IRBs”). These IRBs wassumed by Landec in the acquisition
of Lifecore. The IRBs are collateralized by a béatker of credit which is secured by a first moggan the Lifecore facility in Chaska, Minnesota. |
addition, Lifecore pays an annual remarketing fggaéto 0.125% and an annual letter of credit fie@ ©6%.

On April 23, 2012 in connection with the acquigitiof GreenLine, Apio entered into three loan agrestsmwith General Electric Capital
Corporation and/or its affiliates (“GE Capital"gallectively the “Apio Loan Agreements”):

1) A five-year, $25.0 million asset-based workaapital revolving line of credit, with an intereste of LIBOR plus 2%, with availability based
on the monthly combination of the eligible accousiseivable and inventory balances of Apio andutssidiaries. Apio’s revolving line of
credit has an unused fee of 0.375% per annum. Aehtber 24, 2013, Apio had $1.0 million outstandimgler its revolving line of credit.

2) A $12.7 million capital equipment loan which ton@s in seven years payable in monthly principal iaterest payments of $175,356 with
interest based on a fixed rate of 4.39% per annum.
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3) A $19.2 million real estate loan, $1.2 million ohigh was paid in April 2013, and the remainder miatuin ten years. The real estate loan
a fifteen year amortization period due in monthlingipal and interest payments of $141,962 witleriest based on a fixed rate of 4.02% per
annum. The principal balance remaining at the drileoten year term is due in one lump sum on Ma30R2.

The obligations of Apio and its subsidiaries aigsfrom the Apio Loan Agreements are secured byslemall of the property of Apio and its
subsidiaries. The Apio Loan Agreements containarasty events of default under which obligationslddie accelerated or increased. Landec is
guaranteeing all obligations of Apio and its sulzsids to GE Capital under the loans describedainses (2) and (3) above and has pledged its equity
interest in Apio as collateral under the loan diésct in (1) above. The Apio Loan Agreements contaistomary covenants, such as limitations on the
ability to (1) incur indebtedness or grant liensiegative pledges on Ap®assets; (2) make loans or other investmentgaByividends or repurcha
stock or other securities; (4) sell assets; (5agedgn mergers; (6) enter into sale and leaselankdactions; (7) adopt certain benefit plans; &)d (
make changes in Apio’s corporate structure. In timidi Apio must maintain a minimum fixed charge emge ratio of 1.10 to 1.0. Apio was in
compliance with all financial covenants as of Nobem24, 2013.

On May 23, 2012, Lifecore entered into two finagcagreements with BMO Harris Bank N.A. and/or iffiates (“‘BMO Harris”),
collectively (the “Lifecore Loan Agreements”):

1) A Credit and Security Agreement (the “Credirdgment”) which includes (a) a one-year, $10.0iamilasset-based working capital revolving
line of credit, with an interest rate of LIBOR plis85%, with availability based on the combinatiriifecore’s eligible accounts receivable
and inventory balances (availability was $9.4 moiiliat November 24, 2013) and with no unused feR¢aember 24, 2013 and May 26, 2C
no amounts were outstanding under the line of gradd (b) a $12.0 million term loan which matuire$our years due in monthly payments
of $250,000 with interest payable monthly baseé @ariable interest rate of LIBOR plus 2% (the ‘fiidroan”).

2) A Reimbursement Agreement pursuant to which BNEDris caused its affiliate Bank of Montreal teus an irrevocable letter of credit in the
amount of $3.5 million (the “Letter of Credit”) wtth is securing the IRB described below.

The obligations of Lifecore under the Lifecore Lodgreements are secured by liens on all of thegnypf Lifecore. The Lifecore Loan
Agreements contain customary covenants, such #@stioms on the ability to (1) incur indebtednesgmnt liens or negative pledges on Lifecore’s
assets; (2) make loans or other investments; BYipadends or repurchase stock or other securifissell assets; (5) engage in mergers; (6) énte
sale and leaseback transactions; (7) adopt cdrgaigfit plans; and (8) make changes in Lifecoreiparate structure. In addition, under the Credit
Agreement, Lifecore must maintain (a) a minimuneébcharge coverage ratio of 1.10 to 1.0 and a mimirquick ratio of 1.25 to 1.00, both of which
must be satisfied as of the end of each fiscaltguaommencing with the fiscal quarter ending Aud& 2012 and (b) a minimum tangible net worth
of $29,000,000, measured as of May 26, 2013, amnd the end of each fiscal year thereafter. Lifecaas in compliance with all financial covenant
of November 24, 2013. Unamortized loan originafiees for the Lifecore Loan Agreements were $123#800$149,000 at November 24, 2013 and
May 26, 2013, respectively, and are included ireptssets in the Consolidated Balance Sheets. Aratbioh of loan origination fees recorded to
interest expense for both the three months endegiber 24, 2013 and November 25, 2012 was $13/&@0rtization of loan origination fees
recorded to interest expense for both the six nmettded November 24, 2013 and November 25, 20132&600.

The Term Loan was used to repay Lifecore’s formedit facility with Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. (“WellBargo”). The Letter of Credit (which
replaces a letter of credit previously providedidglls Fargo) provides liquidity and credit suppiort the IRBs.
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In May 2010, the Company entered into a five-yagerest rate swap agreement under its prior caggiégement with Wells Fargo, which
expires on April 30, 2015. The interest rate swas wriginally designated as a cash flow hedgetofélinterest payments of LIBOR and had a
notional amount of $20 million. As a result of héerest rate swap transaction, the Company fired fiive-year period the interest rate at 4.24%
subject to market based interest rate risk on $illomof borrowings under the credit agreementhai¥ells Fargo. The Company’s obligations under
the interest rate swap transaction as to the stdgayments were guaranteed and secured on thelssis as its obligations under the credit
agreement with Wells Fargo at the time the agre¢meas consummated. Upon entering into the new Tayam with BMO Harris, the Company used
the proceeds from that loan to pay off the WellgBacredit facility. The swap with Wells Fargo wast terminated upon the extinguishment of the
debt with Wells Fargo. As a result of extinguishthg debt with Wells Fargo as of May 23, 2012,4Wvap was no longer an effective hedge and
therefore, the fair value of the swap at the tiheedebt was extinguished of $347,000 was reversed 6ther comprehensive income and recorded in
other expense during fiscal year 2012. The faineaf the swap arrangement as of November 24, a6d3viay 26, 2013 was $95,000 and $163,000,
respectively, and is included in other accruediliizs in the accompanying Consolidated Balanceegf

Landec believes that its cash from operations,galeith existing cash, cash equivalents and marketsdxurities will be sufficient to finance
its operational and capital requirements for astiélae next twelve months.

Item 3.  Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk

There have been no material changes to the Congparayket risk during the first six months of fisgabr 2014.
Item 4. Controlsand Procedures
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Our management evaluated, with participation of@uief Executive Officer and our Chief Financialfiodr, the effectiveness of our
disclosure controls and procedures as of the etttegberiod covered by this Quarterly Report omi-@0-Q. Based on this evaluation, our Chief
Executive Officer and our Chief Financial OfficeaMe concluded that our disclosure controls andgutores are effective in ensuring that information
required to be disclosed in reports filed underEkehange Act is recorded, processed, summarizédegorted within the time periods specified by
the Securities and Exchange Commission, and aeetefé in providing reasonable assurance thatmmébion required to be disclosed by the Company
in such reports is accumulated and communicatétet@€ompany’s management, including its Chief ExeelOfficer and Chief Financial Officer, as
appropriate to allow timely decisions regardinguiegd disclosure.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Repartin

There were no changes in our internal controls imancial reporting during the fiscal quarter eddéovember 24, 2013 that have materially
affected, or are reasonably likely to materiallieef, our internal controls over financial repogtin

-31-




PART Il. OTHER INFORMATION
Item 1. Legal Proceedings

As of the date of this report, the Company is npagy to any legal proceedings.
Item 1A. Risk Factors

Except as set forth below, there have been nofgignt changes to the Company's risk factors whiehincluded and described in the Form
10-K for the fiscal year ended May 26, 2013 fileibmthe Securities and Exchange Commission on Augua013.

Item 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securitiesnal Use of Proceeds

There were no unregistered sales of equity seesifiti shares repurchased by the Company durirfista quarter ended on November 24,
2013.

Item 3. Defaults Upon Senior Securities
None.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures
Not applicable

Item 5. Other Information
None.

Iltem 6. EXxhibits

Exhibit
Number Exhibit Title:
31.1+ CEO Certification pursuant to section 302hef Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
31.2+ CFO Certification pursuant to section 302hef Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
32.1+ CEO Certification pursuant to section 906hef Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
32.2+ CFO Certification pursuant to section 90&hef Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

101.INS** XBRL Instance

101.SCH** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema
101.CAL** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation
101.DEF** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition
101.LAB** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Labels

101.PRE** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation

+  Filed herewith.
** Information is furnished and not filed or a pafta registration statement or prospectus for gsep of sections 11 or 12 of the Securities
Act of 1933, as amended, is deemed not filed foppses of section 18 of the Securities ExchangeoAt034, as amended, and otherwise is

not subject to liability under these sections
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgé Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caussdRaport to be signed on its behall
the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

LANDEC CORPORATION

By: /s/ Gregory S. Skinner
Gregory S. Skini
Vice President, Finance and Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)

Date: January 3, 2014
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Exhibit 31.7
CERTIFICATION
I, Gary T. Steele, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this quarterly repmrtForm 10-Q of Landec Corporation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this quartegfyort does not contain any untrue statement cét@mal fact or omit to state a material fact neeeg
to make the statements made, in light of the cistances under which such statements were madmisieading with respect to the period covere
this quarterly report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the finandi@esnents, and other financial information includethis quarterly report, fairly present in all regal
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, angtfe periods presented in this quarterly report;

4, The registrant's other certifying offi and | are responsible for establishing and tamiimg disclosure controls and procedures (addfin
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) amdriat control over financial reporting (as definedExchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f))
for the registrant and have:

(a) designed such disclosure controlsmndedures, or caused such disclosure controlp@mugdures to be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhsbsidiaries, is made known to us by others withi
those entities, particularly during the period ihigh this quarterly report is being prepared;

(b) designed such internal control owearficial reporting, or caused such internal cordx@r financial reporting to be designed under
our supervision, to provide reasonable assuramzgdiang the reliability of financial reporting attte preparation of financial statements for externa
purposes in accordance with generally accepteduatiog principles;

(c) evaluated the effectiveness of grgagtrant's disclosure controls and procedurepasgknted in this quarterly report our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the discsantrols and procedures, as of the end of thegeovered by this quarterly report based on such
evaluation, and

(d) disclosed in this quarterly repory @hange in the registrant’s internal control ofneancial reporting that occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regigts fourth quarter in the case of an annual m@poat has materially affected, or is reasondikigly
to materially affect, the registrant’s internal tmhover financial reporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifying offi and | have disclosed, based on our most resafiation of internal control over financial refiog, to
the registrant's auditors and the audit commitfebeoregistrant’s board of directors (or persoegfigeming the equivalent functions):

(a) all significant deficiencies and erédl weaknesses in the design or operation ofriatecontrol over financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regigtsaability to record, process, summarize and refpmancial information; and

(b) any fraud, whether or not matetiat involves management or other employees whe hasignificant role in the registrant's
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: January 3, 2014
/sl Gary T. Steele

Gary T. Steele
Chief Executive Officer




Exhibit 31.z
CERTIFICATION
I, Gregory S. Skinner, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this quarterly reportForm 10-Q of Landec Corporation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this quartegfyort does not contain any untrue statement cét@mal fact or omit to state a material fact neeeg
to make the statements made, in light of the cistances under which such statements were madmisieading with respect to the period covere
this quarterly report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the finandilesnents, and other financial information includethis quarterly report, fairly present in all regal
respects the financial condition, results of operstand cash flows of the registrant as of, angtfe periods presented in this quarterly report;

4, The registrant's other certifying offi and | are responsible for establishing and tamiimg disclosure controls and procedures (asddfin
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) arairiat control over financial reporting (as definedxchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f))
for the registrant and have:

(a) designed such disclosure contmots@ocedures, or caused such disclosure contndipecedures to be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhsbsidiaries, is made known to us by others withi
those entities, particularly during the period ihigh this quarterly report is being prepared;

(b) designed such internal control diaincial reporting, or caused such internal cdraker financial reporting to be designed under
our supervision, to provide reasonable assuramgagdang the reliability of financial reporting atite preparation of financial statements for externa
purposes in accordance with generally accepteduatiog principles ;

(c) evaluated the effectiveness ofrdmstrant's disclosure controls and procedurepaesknted in this quarterly report our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the discsantrols and procedures, as of the end of thegeovered by this quarterly report based on such
evaluation; and

(d) disclosed in this quarterly repary &hange in the registrant’s internal control diueancial reporting that occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regigts fourth quarter in the case of an annual m@ploat has materially affected, or is reasondikigly
to materially affect, the registrant’s internal thover financial reporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifying offi and | have disclosed, based on our most resahiation of internal control over financial refiog, to
the registrant's auditors and the audit commitfabeoregistrant’s board of directors (or persoedqrming the equivalent functions):

(a) all significant deficiencies andterél weaknesses in the design or operation efiia control over financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regigtsaability to record, process, summarize and refpmaincial information; and

(b) any fraud, whether or not matettiagt involves management or other employees whke hasignificant role in the registrant's
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: January 3, 2014
/s/Gregory S. Skinner

Gregory S. Skinner
Chief Financial Officer




Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Quarterly Report of Landaridration (the “Company”) on Form XD-or the period ending November 24, 2013 as
with the Securities and Exchange Commission ondidue hereof (the “Report™), Gary T. Steele, Chief Executive Officer and Riest of the
Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 135(Qudpted pursuant to 8 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxleyp#2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with theterements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Sem&iExchange Act of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Retfairly presents, in all material respects, timaficial condition and result of operations of the
Company.

Date: January 3, 2014

/sl Gary T. Steelt

Gary T. Steele

Chief Executive Officer and President
(Principal Executive Officer)

The foregoing certification is being furnishealedy pursuant to Section 906 of the SarbaDatey Act of 2002 (subsections (a) and

of Section 1350, Chapter 63 of Title 18, Unitedt&taCode) and is not being filed as part of thenFd0-Q or as a separate disclos
document.



Exhibit 32.z

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Quarterly Report of Landarfidration (the “Company”) on Form 10-Q for theipdrending November 24, 2013 as filed with
the Securities and Exchange Commission on thelgatof (the “Report”), I, Gregory S. Skinner, Vieeesident of Finance and Adminstration and
Chief Financial Officer of the Company, certify,rpuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursugh®@sb of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with theterements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Sem&iExchange Act of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Retfairly presents, in all material respects, timaficial condition and result of operations of the
Company.

Date: January 3, 2014

/s/ Gregory S. Skinne

Gregory S. Skinner
Vice President and Chief Financial Offic

(Principal Accounting Officer)

* The foregoing certification is being furnishealedy pursuant to Section 906 of the SarbaDekey Act of 2002 (subsections (a) and
of Section 1350, Chapter 63 of Title 18, Unitedt&aCode) and is not being filed as part of therFdd-Q or as a separate disclosure
document.



